ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 25, 2010
9:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Linda Menard, Chair
Senator Kevin Meyer, Vice Chair
Senator Hollis French

Senat or Al bert Kookesh

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Joe Paskvan
COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 266
"An Act relating to energency conpensation from the Violent
Cri mes Conpensation Board.™

- MOVED SB 266 OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BILL NO 278

“An Act allowi ng certain teachers, public enployees, and private
sector enployees to take |eave w thout pay when their spouses
are on | eave from depl oynent in a conbat zone."

- HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 266
SHORT TITLE: VI OLENT CRI MES EMERGENCY COVPENSATI ON
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) THOVAS

02/ 10/ 10 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 10/ 10 (S) STA, FIN

02/ 25/ 10 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)
BILL: SB 278

SHORT TITLE. LEAVE FOR M LI TARY SPOUSES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) W ELECHOWSKI

02/ 12/ 10 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

SENATE STA COWM TTEE -1- February 25, 2010



02/ 12/ 10 (S) STA, L&C
02/ 25/ 10 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

GRI ER HOPKI NS

Ai de to Senator Thomas

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 266 for the sponsor.

GERAD GODFREY, Chair

Vi ol ent Crines Conpensation Board (VCCB)
Departnent of Adm nistration

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 266.

KATE HUDSON, Adni ni strator

Violent Crines Conpensation Board (VCCB)
Departnent of Adm nistration

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 266.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 278.

GEORGE ASCOTT

Al de to Senator W el echowski

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information for SB 278.

DAN WAYNE, Lawyer

Legi sl ative Legal Affairs (LLA)

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided infornmation for SB 278.

JEFFREY M TTMAN, Executive D rector
ACLU - Al aska

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 278.

STACY BANNERVAN

Representing hersel f
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 278.

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 2- February 25, 2010



Nl KKI NEAL, Director

D vi si on of Personnel and Labor Rel ations

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded i nfornation for SB 278.

DENNY DEW TT, Al aska State Director
Nat i onal Federation of |ndependent Business (NFI B)

Juneau, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed SB 278.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:01: 44 AM

CHAIR LINDA MENARD called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:01 a.m Present at the call to

order were Senators French, Meyer and Menard.

SB 266- VI OLENT CRI MES EMERGENCY COVPENSATI ON

9:02: 43 AM
CHAI R MENARD announced the first order of business to cone
before the commttee was SB 266.

CRIER HOPKINS, staff to Senator Thomas, said SB 266 proposes to
increase the amount that victins of violent crinmes can receive
in emergency conpensation from the Violent Crinmes Conpensation
Board (VCCB). The current amount of $1500 is inadequate and has
not been increased since 1975, SB 266 proposed an increased
limt of $3500. Emergency conpensation is primrily for
rel ocation and counseling for famlies and victins whose safety
and well-being are at risk. Enmergency conpensation can also be
awarded for verifiable |ost wages and security neasures. The
VCCB neets about five tinmes annually and several weeks or nonths
can go by before a claimis fully considered; energency awards
can be issued in the nmeantine.

The Victim s Conpensation Fund receives about 70 percent of its
appropriations fromthe state in the form of w thheld permnent
fund dividends from felons. The remaining 30 percent cones from
a federal grant that the VCCB nust apply for annually. Emergency
conpensation is deducted from the final anount given to the
victim and SB 266 does not increase the overall cap of $40,000

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 3- February 25, 2010



that an individual can receive. The fiscal inpact to the state
is zero.

SENATOR KOOKESH j oi ned t he neeti ng.

9:05: 03 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked if a sufficient pot of noney is available
to pay out energency clains.

MR. HOPKINS replied that the increased energency anount should
not be a problem

SENATOR FRENCH asked if the VCCB supports SB 266
MR. HOPKINS replied yes; the VCCB was the inpetus behind SB 266.

CERAD GODFREY, Chair, Violent Crines Conpensation Board (VCCB),
Departnment of Administration, said energency conpensation was
put in place for those in dire need during the interim between
VCCB board neeti ngs.

9:07:41 AM

The allowable armount for enmergency conpensation has been at
$1500 since 1975. Adjusted for inflation, that would ambunt to
over $6000 today. The VCCB considers three criteria for an
energency award: |ost wages, counseling and relocation. These
needs cannot wait ten or eleven weeks for the next VCCB neeting.
He provided an exanple of a fenmale cooperating with the police
after being beaten or assaulted. If the perpetrator threatens to
find and harm her, relocation cannot be delayed but $1500 is
often not enough for a plane ticket or a deposit on a new
apartment .

He explained that up to $1500 per victim is allowable in
energency funding. If the woman has two children, she will get
up to $4500 to relocate her famly. However, just one wonan
woul d only receive $1500. Wthout the ability to award nore than
$1500 between VCCB neetings, that wonman is stuck.

9:10: 32 AM

MR. GODFREY clarified that SB 266 does not give victins nore
noney overall but rather gives them nore, up front, of what they
are going to get.

SENATOR KOOKESH referred to t he tabl e "Vi ol ent Cri mes

Conpensation Board: New C ains Received by Location of Crine"
and asked about the seven out-of-state cases.

SENATE STA COWM TTEE -4- February 25, 2010



MR. GODFREY replied that anyone in Alaska, who is a victimof a
violent crime here, whether he or she is a resident or not, is
eligible for conpensation. The seven out-of-state cases could
include a person who was victimzed while visiting Al aska or
victinmse who have relocated near a support network in another
state. Victins nust denonstrate why going to another place is
best for them

9:14: 17 AM

KATE HUDSON, Adm nistrator, Violent Crinmes Conpensation Board
(VCCB), Departnment of Admnistration, clarified that the seven
out-of-state clains are people residing outside of Al aska but
claimng conpensation from Al aska. They were either victins of
crinme while visiting Alaska or are relatives of homicide victins
travelling to attend a funeral in Al aska. She said the vast
majority of claimants are Al aska residents but statute does
al |l ow conpensation for visitors. She pointed out that an Al askan
resident, who is victimzed in another state, would be
conpensat ed under that state's program

9:15: 52 AM
CHAI R MENARD cl osed public testinony.

SENATOR FRENCH noved to report SB 266 from committee wth
i ndi vidual recomrendations and attached fiscal note(s). There
bei ng no objection, the notion carri ed.

9:16: 35 AM
CHAIR MENARD called an at ease from9:16 a.m to 9:18 a.m

SB 278- LEAVE FOR M LI TARY SPOUSES

9:18: 00 AM
CHAI R MENARD announced the next order of business to cone before
the conmttee to be SB 278.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI, sponsor of SB 278, said SB 278 allows the
spouses of soldiers serving in conbat zones to take up to 10
days of wunpaid leave from work while the soldier is on |eave
from a conbat zone. SB 278 applies to all active duty and
reserve nenbers whose famly nenbers live in Al aska. Leave for
soldiers is often unpredictable and a spouse should not have to
worry about tinme off work when a |oved one has a few days away
froma conbat zone

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 25, 2010



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said horror stories from people who were
not granted time off work were the inpetus behind SB 278. Ten
states have simlar bills, sonme of which allow up to 30 days of
| eave. To be respectful to the business community, SB 278 limts
time off to 10 days. He noted opposition has cone from the
Nati onal Federation of |ndependent Business / Al aska (NFIB)
O her states have had zero opposition to simlar bills and no
conplaints fromsimlar |egislation

9:21: 02 AM
CHAIR MENARD asked if consideration has been given to the
parents of sol diers.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said other states have provisions for
siblings, grandparents or close relationships. He said he is
trying to limt the inpact and be considerate of the business
community by starting small and targeting the spouses.

CHAI R MENARD She said she is sensitive to the inpact that SB 278
coul d have on small business with only two or three enpl oyees.

SENATOR FRENCH said SB 278 would apply to state of Al aska
teachers, public enployees and private sector businesses with 20
or nore enpl oyees.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI said Senator French's interpretation is
correct. SB 278 applies to businesses wth nore than 20
enpl oyees.

9:23: 20 AM
CHAIR MENARD asked if the enployer has a nechanism to verify
that the enployee is narried to the soldier.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he thinks verification is appropriate
and noted that |ying about having a spouse in the arnmed forces
is grounds for term nation. Some states have provisions allow ng
for docunmentation. He said this type of legislation is a grow ng
trend with 10 states adopting simlar |egislation since 2007.
Information on other state's requirenments is in the commttee
packet .

CHAIR MENARD asked if other additional states have a simlar
bill in progress.

GECRCE ASCOIT, aide to Senator Welechowski, replied that he is

not aware of other states with a bill in progress now. He said
Senator Ron Wden has sponsored a federal bill that would do the

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 6- February 25, 2010



same thing. That bill has not passed and M. Ascott is unsure of
its current status.

9:26: 09 AM

SENATOR MEYER felt that the ability to verify that the spouse
truly was in a conbat zone is inportant. He is concerned about a
spouse leaving his or her job without notice as that could be
devastating to a large retail store right before Christmas, for
exanple, or to a small rural school. He asked how other states
deal with this problem

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI replied that Al aska woul d be supporting the
troops by allowi ng their spouses to have this tinme off. Doing so
may cause sone hardship for sone enployers. He said mlitary
|l eave is unpredictable and addressing the problem of
notification for enployers is challenging.

9:29:12 AM

SENATOR MEYER said he wonders if the blow to public and private
enpl oyers can be lessened. He noted that a fiscal note was not
present and said if a state enployee is absent for ten days, a
cost would be incurred to fill in for that person.

CHAI R MENARD noted that paying for a substitute teacher is also
a cost.

SENATOR WELECHOMNSKI said the |eave addressed in SB 278 is
unpaid | eave. A state enployee would not get paid for this tine
off so there could be a positive fiscal inpact to the state. A
substitute teacher typically does not get paid anywhere near
what a regul ar teacher does.

SENATOR MEYER stated that if a state enployee can be gone for 10
days and not have an inpact, then we have too many enpl oyees. If
an enployee is absent, a tenporary enployee has to be brought
in. He said he would like to hear from Superintendent Coneau
(Anchorage School District) about getting substitute teachers at
the last mnute. Wiile they are paid less, the quality of
education is inpacted.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said he is open to suggestions.
9:31:56 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked the bill drafter, Dan Wyne, to

address Senator Meyer's question about the tineliness of the
request for |eave.

SENATE STA COWM TTEE -7- February 25, 2010



DAN WAYNE, Lawyer, Legislative Legal Affairs (LLA), replied that
a reasonable tinme for giving notice of time off work is not
defined and woul d be subject to interpretation by the enpl oyer.

SENATOR KOOKESH said a lot of mlitary personnel do get notice
of leave. He noted it is a tw or three day trip from
Af ghanistan to the United States. He suggested that sone notice
should be given to the enployer i f possi bl e; certain
ci rcunst ances or exenptions could be drafted into SB 278.

CHAI R MENARD comment ed that 24 or 48 hours m ght be possible.
SENATOR KOOKESH sai d he was thinking of 24 hours of notice.

9:34: 56 AM

SENATOR MEYER said even with 48 hours of notice, the enployer
needs sone way to know that the enployee's spouse is even in the
mlitary. He conmented that |ike any good program people will
abuse it.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI said he would work on some | anguage about
verification.

9:35: 54 AM
CHAI R MENARD opened public testinony.

JEFFREY M TTMAN, Executive Director, ACLU - Alaska, noted he is
a fornmer infantry lieutenant of the US Arny. He said the ACLU is
concerned with civil Iliberties and constitutional rights under
the US and Alaska constitutions. The ACLU supports SB 278. He
stated that under the Al aska Suprenme Court's ruling in ACLU v.
Al aska, the Suprenme Court recognized that, because the Al aska
constitution forbids sanme-sex donestic partners from the
opportunity to legally marry, it is a violation of the equal
protection clause to confer benefits by the governnent on
legally married spouses and deny them to same sex domestic
partners. The ACLU - Al aska asks that SB 278 be anmended to state
"spouses or same-sex couples” or "spouses and sane-sex donestic
partners” rather than just "spouses". The non-partisan urban
institute has estinmated 65,000 |esbhian, gay and transgender
individuals, nmany wth famlies, are serving in the United
States mlitary in both conbat and non-conbat zones. Anmendi ng SB
278 in this way would affirm the current realities of conbat
menbers and keep consistent with the Suprene Court.

9:38:21 AM

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 8- February 25, 2010



CHAI R MENARD asked if the mlitary person would have a same-sex
partner decl ar ed.

JEFFREY M TTMAN said that based on the current policy of "Don't

Ask, Don't Tell," requiring declaration of a same-sex partner
for the mlitary is not possible. The non-mlitary menber of a
partnership would inform their enployer that they would Iike

time off to spend tine with their mlitary partner. That does
not require the partner's identity to be disclosed to the
mlitary and does not violate "Don't Ask, Don't Tell."

SENATOR KOOKESH said even for people married in statute, they
will have to prove that one is in the mlitary.

JEFFREY M TTMAN said the issue of docunentation was handled in
ACLU v. Alaska. Verification of donestic partnership can be
proved with notarized statenent that an ongoing, intertw ned,
enotional and financial relationship exists. Leave orders could
provide verification of mlitary status.

9:41: 07 AM
CHAI R MENARD asked if SB 278 would have a negative effect on
smal | businesses hiring mlitary spouses.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said no detrinental inpact has been
experienced in other states with simlar |egislation.

MR. ASCOIT said the legislators and staff he spoke wth in
Oregon and California reported no conplaints about simlar
| egi sl ati on.

SENATOR KOCOKESH said a business with 19 enployees is no |onger a
smal | business and taking one away should not be a disruption.
He is confortable having the nunber of enployees set at 20
before SB 278 takes effect.

MR  WAYNE pointed out that all leave statutes for state
enpl oyees allow the departnents to set regulations. The burden
is on the enployee to provide information if asked by the

enpl oyer.

9:44: 54 AM
STACY BANNERMAN, blue star wife of an Arny National Guard
Soldier, said her husband returned from his second conbat

deploynent in Iraq in the Fall of 2009 and will likely serve a
third deploynment. She said in a few nonths, another 30,000
troops, nost wth children and spouses who work, wll be

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 9- February 25, 2010



depl oying to Afghanistan. SB 278 would allow a working spouse to
spend tine with a loved one on nmlitary |eave wthout fear of
| osing his or her job.

Fam |y nenbers can provide their enployer wth docunentation,
such as a copy of the mlitary spouse's orders. Any additiona
guestions or needs of the enployer could be addressed by the
Fam | y Readi ness Coordi nator. She said her husband spent several
mont hs training thousands of mles away prior to his second tour
in lrag. Wien he had |eave, she had recently started a new job
with no sick leave or vacation tine available and it would be
nore than one year before she saw her husband again. Supporting
the troops includes supporting mlitary famlies.

9:48: 26 AM

M5. BANNERMAN said this is the first tine in US history that the
burdens of war have been borne virtually exclusively by troops
and their famlies during an extended conflict. Wen the veteran
comes home, famly support is the single nost critical factor in
successful reintegration of that veteran. The denmands of the War
on Terror and the denographics of the 21st century mlitary are
very different from the past. Adapting to those realities nust
i ncl ude expandi ng support for mlitary famlies. She read three
letters frommlitary wives about the need for a mlitary famly
| eave act:

.Wnen have had to nmake the choice sonetinmes of
quitting their jobs in order to have that tinme wth
their husbands and in today's econony that is clearly
not the best choice for sonme famlies.

|"ve had friends treated poorly over asking for tine
of f when their hubbies were comng honme from 15 nonth
depl oynents and friends who subsequently had to quit
their jobs in order to get that tinme that is so well
deserved and nuch needed...

My husband left in COctober last year in his second

tour to Iraq. | had to travel cross-country to see him
for four days at Fort Dix, New Jersey and | al nost
lost ny job because of it. | had to fight for it.
After calling upper managenent and the mayor's office,
they finally backed off. There's still a lot of
tension at work. He'll be hone this sumer for his two
weeks and |I'm already fighting for time off as we

speak. They always ensure that they support the troops
and nmy husband but they're sorry |I can't have the tine

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- February 25, 2010



off. I hope the bill passes so | don't have to worry
about spending tinme with ny husband and our children
in the future.

M5. BANNERMVAN concluded that ten days off for one enployee is a
tiny sacrifice to help shoulder the burden of war borne
exclusively by troops and their famlies. For sone, the reality
is that their soldier will come home in a box. Alaska's mlitary
famlies deserve ten days.

9:51: 44 AM
SENATOR MEYER asked Ms. Bannernman if she gets notice when her
husband i s com ng hone.

M5. BANNERMAN said generally speaking advanced notice is given
Anticipated | eave dates are usually known two to four weeks in
advance though last mnute changes sonetines alter things by 48
hours or so. She noted that the spouse's enployer could be given
a copy of the soldier's Title 10 orders for deployment prior to
the sol dier's depl oynent.

9:54: 37 AM

She said mlitary famly nenbers need to comunicate wth
enpl oyers. She pointed out that some incidences render advance
noti ce i npossi bl e.

NI KKI NEAL, Director, Division of Personnel and Labor Relations,
Department of Admi nistration, addressed Senator Meyer's earlier
guestion about the cost associated with filling in for an absent
enpl oyee for 10 days. She said enpl oyees have unexpected periods
of leave for many reasons. Absences of 10 days or |ess are not
commonly back-filled. OQher enployees and the supervisor take on
work that is needed i mediately and ot her work can be del ayed.

SENATOR MEYER asked if sone teachers are state enployees, such
as at M. Edgecunbe.

M5. NEAL replied yes and said substitutes are pulled from a
pool, for many reasons, with an associated cost covered within
t hei r budget.

SENATOR MEYER said the fiscal note should be indetermnate
because the inpact is unknown. He said a substitute teacher, for
exanple, has to be paid to sonething for 10 days of work.

M5. NEAL reiterated that paying substitutes is managed within
t heir school budgets.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- February 25, 2010



CHAI R MENARD asked if M. Neal thought 10 days was a nanageabl e
absence.

9:58: 53 AM

MS. NEAL said 10 days is reasonable. Enployees also have deaths
and unplanned nedical energencies in the famly. She said she
would not expect SB 278 to create enployee absences too
regularly in any one departnent.

DENNY DEWTT, Alaska State Director, National Federation of
| ndependent Business (NFIB), said the NFIB has a nunber of
concerns with SB 278. WMany small enployers, such as tourism
busi nesses, go over 20 enployees at a tine when they need all
enpl oyees on a "crash basis". He said half of the enployees of a
smal |l business near a mlitary base, such as North Pole, mght
be mlitary spouses. He pointed out that 4,000 troops just
rotated honme in Fairbanks and said 4,000 spouses taking
unnoticed |eave could be devastating. Sone snmall businesses
could have nore than one or two enployees taking this |eave. He
said he has spoken with enployers who say they try to work
things out with their enployees, providing opportunities for
time off, and keep the business running. A small enployer m ght

have to pay overtine to fill vacancies the cost of benefits for
t he absent enployee is still being carried.
10: 02: 33 AM

MR. DEWTT noted that the penalties for not providing time off
are nore severe in SB 287 than they are in relation to jury
duty.

CHAIR MENARD asked if he would like SB 287 to mrror |aws
pertaining to jury duty.

MR DEWTT said mrroring jury duty would be nore appropriate
than SB 287 is now He said applying this law to the private
sector woul d be government interference.

SENATOR KOOKESH asked M. Dewitt to suggest what could be
changed and still get to the end result of mlitary spouses
getting time off while a spouse has | eave from a conbat zone. He
noted that when 4,000 troops return to Fairbanks, they are
com ng home, not com ng out of combat and going right back.

10: 05: 37 AM
MR DEWTT replied when his son has cone hone from Iraq and
Af ghani stan, he cones hone on |eave. Many of the fol ks who cone

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- February 25, 2010



back are on leave. As NFIB reads SB 287, returning from
depl oynment on | eave woul d be covered as well.

He said he has talked to a nunmber of NFIB nenbers wth
busi nesses near bases who have not reported a problem and do not
see a need for legislation to get involved in dealing with their
enpl oyees which they already do as best they can. He noted that
governnmental enpl oyees, because of the structure of statutes,
have nore difficulty accomodating enpl oyees on different issues
than the private sector does. In the private sector, nost
enpl oyers and enployees know each other and work through
probl ems. Governnent involvenent nakes it nore difficult for
private sector enployers to deal with issues.

10: 08: 16 AM
SENATOR KOOKESH said it seens the NFIB will not support SB 287
He pointed out that M. Bannerman's testinony illustrated the

ki nds of problens that SB 287 is trying to address.

MR DEWTT replied that he does not know who the enployers of
the wonmen who wote the letters were. He noted one was
apparently from Portland and said Al askan busi nesses have a very
different relationship with the mlitary than npst states. He
said another letter read by Ms. Bannernman referred to having to
go up the chain to the Myor, which inplies a public enployer
He said private enployers in Al aska have been very supportive
and want to continue to hire mlitary spouses.

SENATOR MEYER said SB 287 should include sone requirenent of
giving notice to the enployer if at all possible. He also asked
how a smal |l business is defined.

MR. DEWTT replied that the federal notion of a small business
is under 100 enpl oyees. However, he said several things besides
t he nunber of enployees differentiate |arge enployers from snal
enpl oyers and gave an exanple of a hospitality operator with 225
enpl oyees who is conpeting agai nst maj or gl obal enpl oyers.

10: 12: 37 AM
CHAI R MENARD cl osed public testinony.

CHAIR MENARD said she felt it was in the conmttee' s Dbest
interest to hold SB 278 for a future hearing and get sone of
t heir questions fine-tuned.

10: 13: 08 AM
CHAI R MENARD adj ourned the neeting at 10:13 a. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- February 25, 2010



